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OPINION
spploN BY JUDGE ROGERS FILED: AUGUST 9, 1979

Phyllis A. Carney has filed a petition for review in
the nature of mandamus seekling an order compelling the Pennsyl-

yhnla Human Relatiohs Commission (PHRC): to reopen its investipga-

tion of charges of sex discrimination aguinst her by her enmployer;
to grant her a preliminary hearing before three or more Commis-
sloners at which she would be accorded the right to present and
cross—-examine witnesses|and offer evidence; and to pay to her
reasonable counsel'fees and costs In this proceeding. The PHRC

has filed preliminary objecticns in the nature of a demurrer

asserting that the petition was not timely t'iled and that the

petition failed to state a cause of actlion for mandamus.

. Preliminary objections in the nature of a demurrer admit gf
all well pleaded facts and inferences deduclble therefrom, but not

conclusions of law. Independent Association of Pennsylvania Liquor

Control Board Employees v. Commonwealth, 35 Pa. Commonwealth Ct. 133,

384 A.2d 1367 (1978).

Ms. Carney alleges that she filed a complaint with the PHRC

chargjné that her employment at Magec Memorlal Hospital had been
terminated solely because of her sex; that her rate of compensation
while employed was lower than that .of male employees with similar
responsitilities; and that the hospltal had not, as required by law,
provided posted notlice of rigﬁts guarahtuud by the Pennsylvania

Human Relations Act. Other allegations arce that the PHRC notified




hoe by ietlel that 1t had dismissed hev complaint pecause after
iﬂ%vnzﬁgnhion it pelieved tﬁat no probghle cause exlsted to support
o chnrEens tpat she filed a request for réconsidcration; that
thin pequest was granted and that a conferénce was held on July

s, 1976 attended DY her, ner counsel, counsel for PHRC and an

rployer representative; that at ther conference no participants

testifiéd under oath, no other evidenceg was recelved and no record
of the proceedings made ; and that a week later ghe was potified by
letter that the PHRC had apalin determined that Ro probahle cause

for her complaint existed and reaffirmed 1ts action dismissing the

complaint.

_ gection 9 of the‘Pennsylvania Human Relatlons Act (PHRA),
pct of OctobEr 27, 1955, p.L. Tul, as amended, 43 p.5. §959,

provides peftinently:

“%ny jpdividual claiming to be apprieved by
an aileged unlawful discriminatory practice may
make, sifn and file with the commisslion & ver-

T e

ified complqigy, in writing -

after the filing of any complalint, or when-

ever there is reascon to belleve that an unlawful
disc¢riminatory practice has been committed, the

Conmisslon shall make & Qggmngﬁiﬂxpstigation in

conhectbion therewith. ST :

17 it shall be dotermined after such investiga-
tidn that no pvohnh]e cause exlsts tor creditling
the allepatlons of the complaint, t.he commission
shall, within ten days trom such dokorminntion,
cause Lo pe lunucd and served upob the complain=
ant written notice of such getermination, and the
sald complainunt or nis attorony ny within ten
days after such service, file with Lhe Commicslon
a W,JZJ,LL_‘EF_L_E_QQ.‘.1_!2.5»_'__@,__,fi_Q_I‘_,_EL_p._I'f_zl_i_m’l novy hearing be fore
tho Commisslon Lo determine prohnh\c cnune for
eredliting the allepatlond of the complaint.
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the Commission shall establlsh rules or
practlce to govern, expedite and effectuate
the fbregoling procedure and its own acticns
thoereiunder., Thrce or more members of the
Commiosion shall constitute the Commiusaion
ror ahy hearing required to be held by the
commission under thils act. . . M

PHRC has adopted repulations under Section g to be found
at Subchapter P, 16 Pa, Code §§ 42.61, h2,62 and 42.63. These,

pertinent to this case are the followlng:

"2 62, Request for reconsideration of dismissal.

(a)} If the complaint 1s dismissed, the complain-
ant may request reconsideration of the dismissal
of the complaint.

(b) The request for reconslderation of the dis-
migssal of a complaint may be nmade only once for
each ground of dismissal.

(e¢) A request for reconsideraticn of dismissal
shall be in writing, shall state specifically the
grounds relied on, and may contaln new evidence
not previously considered by the Commisslon.

(d) A regquest for reconsideration of dismlssal
and a request for a preliminary hearings shall be
filed within ten days of the receipt of the notice
of dismissal of the complaint."

"§42.63. Reconsideration of dismissal.

(al If the request for reconsideration of dis-
missal 1s granted, the matter will be referred

to staff counsel who will consider any new evidence
and secure new Informatlion as may be necessary and
appropriate and who iy convene a preltiminary hear-
jl”l'{f’,@f)Y‘ﬂQll(‘:‘Stﬂd by the compl atnnnt In a timely
nlfl{"!ll(;f". ) T

(b) When a prellminacy hearing is convened by

GiLaflf counsel, the testimony taken nt, such preliminary
hearing will not be transeribed or under cath, The
staff counsel witl hear the cvidencee, roeinvestlipgate
Lhoe {rnets 10 necenanry, and 1l1e o roeport and recoms
mendatlon with the Comnloslon.
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. . . .

(d) If, upon reconsideration of a complaint
ditmissed upon a finding of no probable cause,
Colmmissieon starfrf determines that no probable
cairse exists to credit the allepations of the
complaint, a finding of no probable cause will
be made and reported Lo the Commivstoners, and
the Commissioners may reattirm their dismissal
of the complaint or take such other sction as
the Commissloners may deem appropriate,"

It will be noted that while Section 9 of PHRA provides
only for & preliminary hearing, the repgulations provide for an
additional procedure called a request for reconsideration, pre-
sumably to be accompaniéd by the statutory request for preliminary
hearing. By §N2.é3(a), apbarently the request for reconsideration
1s not intended to entall the participation of the complainant

but is an entirely internal matter, one result of which may be

the convening of a preliminary hearing. Further, under §42.63(b)
of the regulations, the preliminary hearling consists only of what

the petitloner here has properly described as the conference she Ff

attended on July 29, 1976, at which there was.no testimony under oath,

evidence or record made.

Ms. Carney alleges that following the conference of July
29, 1976, and after belng told for the second time that PHRC would
dismiss her complaint, the Commlssion (apparently in response to

her further request) notificd her by letter dated Aupgust 23, 1977

‘that the conference she had attended was the preliminary heariny,
She contends here that this was ne hearing; that PHRC by Section

9 1s requirrd to have a preliminary hearing upon her reguest; and

- ] o
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t1at nach preldminary hearing by the same Scetion 9 must be
eﬂuuhmhcd by three or more members of the Commisslon. PHﬁC

auawers that Section 9 pives 1t sole and unfettered discretion

to have a preliminary hearing or not to have one and that hence,
even 1 the events of July 29, 1976 did not constitute a prelimi-
nary hearing, the petitlion does not describe a minlsterial duty
neceessary for mandamus to 1lle. We agree with PHRC that Section

9 does not mandate a prelimlinary hearing whenever requested,
Therefore, since this preliminary hearing is not a hearing "required-
to be held by the Commission", no commissioner 1s required to be

present at the prelimlnary hearing.

We have concluded, however, that PHRC was,as a prerequisite
to a Qalid determination that no probable cause existed,to afford
Ms. Carney a hearing conforming to the requirements of the Admintis-
trative Agency Law (AAL), Act of June U4, 1945, P.L. 1388, as
. amended, 71 P.S. §1710.1 et'seq., which was in effect at the time
of the PHRC actions complalned of.1 Although Sectlon 51
of ﬁhe AAlT 414 not.name PHRC as an apency to which the Act applied,
the same Section provided that the Act would apply to any other
agency made subject to the provisions of the Act by any other Act
of Asscmbly. Section 10 of PHURA in effect at the time of the
Commission's actlions complained of here, states pertinently:
"Except‘aﬁ otherwise provided hereih any order of the Commlsslon
may be reviewed under provisions of the Act of June four, one
thousand nine hundred forty-five (Pamﬁhlet Laws 1388), known as

the 'Administrative Apgency Law,' and its amendments."  Section I4




af the AAL, 71 P.S. §1710.44, pfovides per£inently: “Aftér
hediring, the court shall affirm the adjudication unless 1t
phiell find . . . that the provislons of soctinnslthirtyuone
to thirty-filve inclusive of thils act have been violated in

the proceeding before the agency. . . ."

Clea%ly, a determination by PHRC that no probable cause
exlsts for crediting the allepations of a complaint and dismiss-
ing the complaint 1s an adjudication, defined as "any flnal order,
decrece, decislon, determination or ruling by an agency affecting
personal or property rights, privileges, immunities, duties,
liabillties or obligations of any or all of the parties to the
proceédings in which the adjudlcation is made . . . ." Section
2(a) of AAL, 71 P.S. §1710.2(a). Sectlon 31 of the AAL, 71 P.S.
§1710.31, provided that every adjudication must be founded upon
~notlce of a hearing and an opportunity to be heard. Section 31,

71 P.5. §1710.31 and Section 32, 71 P.S. §1710.32 provided that

at such hearing, evidence may be received and examination and
cross~examination permitted. The testimony was to be transcribed
and a full and complete record made. Section 31, 71 P.S. §1710.31.
The conferechece of July 29, 1976 conducted in thls case - did not comply
wiﬁh these requirements. Hence, we cannol say that as respects a

hearing Ms&, Carney's petltion does not state a cause of action,

The: PHRC, in support of its prcliminary objection in the




Faty: o of & demurrer, also arguns Lhat.mnndumus would not 1lie

b wuen Mil, Carney had an adequate alternative remedy at lﬁw
wister Spetilon 12 of PHRA, 43 P.S.-§962. Subuection (b)‘provides
that the grocedures and determinatlion under PHRA.is the exclusive
pemedy for a person who flles a complaint under PHRA. Subsection

(¢} states the following cxception:

"(¢) In cases involving a claim of dlserimination,
if a complalinant invokes the procedures set forth in
this act, that individual'’s right of action 1In the
courts of the Commonwcalth shall not be foreclosed.

If within one (1) year after the fiting of a complaint
with the Commlisslion, the Commission dismlsses the
complaint or has not entered into a conciliation
arrcement to which the complainant 1s a party, the
Commission must so notify the complainant. On receipt
of such a notice the complainant shall - be able to bring
an action in the courts of common pleas of the Common-
wealth based on the ripght to freedom from discrimina-
tion pranted. by this act. . . ."

The Legislature clearly Intended that a complainant exhaust the

procedures under the PHRA as a condition to the accrual of a right

"of actlon in the Court of Common Pleas. The purpose of making

the remedy exclusive was, as the Pennsylvania Supreme Court has
stated, "that the Legislature recognized that only an administra-
tive aﬁency with broad remedlal powers, excrcising particular
expertise) could cope effectively with the pervaslve problem of

unlawful discrimination." Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission

v, Alto-Riste Park Cemetery Assoclation, 453 Pa. 124, 133-34, 306

As24 881, 887 (1973).

We believe the procedures befofe the PHRC and the right to

sue in thb court of common pleas topether constitute the statutory




et ol y ﬁfrpﬂtitIOHEP and are not, alternative adequate remedles,
et st ioner has challénged the valldity of (he probable cause
detrrminatlon-that formed the basls for dismissing her complaint,
Lecayae she was afforded an inadequate hearing. As we have stated,
n determination by the PHRC that no probable cause exists to credit
the allegdtions of the complaint can be made only after a hearing
} at which testimony 1s recorded, Sectlon 31 of AAL,ITJ P.S. §1710.31,
; and must Ye supported by findings and reasons, Scction 34 of AAL,
71 P.S. §1710.34. Therefore the dismissal of Ms. Carney's complaint
was invalld and she properly seeks 1n this‘mandamgs action to
exhaust hdr remedy before the PHRC. If after a hearing conformlng
to the standards set forth in the Administrative Agency Law, the

PHRC determines there 1s no probable causc to credit her complalint,

petitioner may then pursuc an action in the court of common plceas.

The PHRC also ralsed by way of the prelliminary objection
the aséerted bar of laches to flling the petition. "[Tlhe defense
of laches cannot be broupht before the court by way of prelimigary
objectiond but must be ralsed as an affirmntive defense in a
responéive pleading under the hearlng 'Ncew Matter,' ©See Pa. R.C.P.

1030." Rése Tree Medla School District v. Department of Publice

Instruction, 431 Pa. 233, 238-39, 244 A.2a 754, 756 (1968) (footnote

omittead). .
We therefore enter the followlng:




ORDER

AND NOW, this 9th day of August s 1979, the
preliminary obJections of the Pennsylvanla Human Relations

Commission are hereby overruled.

— f)(/@
Thcodorv'(K Iﬂnc¥;;y/ﬂ

1. The Act of June 4, 1945 was repealed, effective June 27, 1978,

by Scation 2(a) of the Judiciary Act Repealer Act, Act of
April 28, 1978, P.L. 202, 42 P.5. §20002(a) [12“&] Materially
identical provisions (Still called the Adminlstrative Agency
Law) are now codified in Title 2 of Consolidated Statutes,

2 Pa. ©.3. §§ »01-508, 701-70h,




IN THE
COMMONWEALTH COURT OF PENNSYLVANTA

PHYLLIS A. CARNEY, Petitioner

L : NO. 308 c.D. 1978
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FARCUTTVE D}HHCTOR,
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ORDER
AND NOW thls gth day of l AugugL , 19?9 the

pre}iminarv objections of the Pennsylvania Human Relations

Commission dre hereby overruled.

c" _A.
‘ P / <
//\ {77;//1//7 .
P heodore O, I]\[) ers, J.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
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PENNSYLVANTA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION

PHYLLIS A. CARNEY,
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vs. : DOCKET NO. E-5564

MAGEE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL,
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PROBABLE CAUSE HEARING
ADJUDICATION




I. FACTUAL STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On or about Febrﬁary 20, 1973 Phyllis A. Carney
(Complainant) filed a complaint with the Pennsylvania
Human Relations Commission (Commission) against the
Magee Memorial Hospital For Convalescents (Respondent).
The Complainant alleged that the Respondent discriminated
against her because of her séx, female, by compensating
her at a lower salary rate than male employees with
similar responsibilities and by terminating her from her
position as an Administrative Assistant. The Complainant
further alleged that the Respondent had failed to post
notices as required by the Pennsylvania Human Relations
Act (Act)l.

The Commission undertook an investigation of the
complaint and on or about July 7, 19f5 informed the
Complainant that it had determined that no probable cause
existed to credit the allegations in the complaint. The
Commission also informed the Complainant that, based upon
its finding, her case had been closed.” The Complainant

was given ten days to request reconsideration of the decision.

1Secticn 955(j) of the Act requires those subject to
the Act to, "...post and exhibit prominently in his place
. of business any fair practices notice prepared and dis-
tributed by the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission".
43 P.S. 955(j) (Supp. 1980-81l). This allegation was not
seriously litigated as an issue during the hearing. More-
over, it appears from the record in the case that notices
had been posted by the Respondent (see: Commission
Exhibit #7).




The Complainant did file a timely request for recon-
sideration which was granted. On July 29, 1976, a con-
ference was held which was attended by counsel for the
Commission, Complainant and Respondent. Subsequent to
this conference additional investigation was undertaken
by the Commission. On or about August 4, 1977 the
Commission notified the Complainant that it had again
closed her case on the grounds that no probable cause
lexisted to credit the allegations of the complaint.

Following the second no probable cause case closure,
the Complainant filed a petition for review in the nature
of mandamus against the Commission in Commonwealth Court.
- This action sought to compell the Commission to reopen

its investigation and to grant her a preliminary hearing

. before three or more Commissioners. The Commission filed

 preliminary objections to the petition which were overruled

'_by the Court on August.9, 1979, Carney v. Comf, Pennsyl-

vania H.R. Com'n., 404 A.2d 760 (Cmwlth. 1979). Thereafter,

ééunsel for the Commission and.the Complainant entered
-into a_étipulétéd ééreement.whereby-the Ccmmission would
convene a Preliminary Hearing in lieu of further litigation.
On January 30, 1981, a hearing was held before
Michael Hardiman, Assistant General Counsel for the

Commission, Harrisburg Regional Office.2

21n overruling the preliminary objections, the Court
had specifically indicated that given the nature of the
hearing the Complainant was seeking there was no requirement
that a Commissioner be present at the hearing, Id. at p. 763.




Claudette Spencer, Assistant General Counsel for the
Commission, Philadelphia Regional Office, represented the
Commission on behalf of its prior determination. John
Matrullo, Esquire, represented the Complainant and David
T. Duff, Esquire, represented ﬁhe Respondent. At the
close of the hearing all parties were given the oppor-

tunity to submit Post Hearing Briefs.3

II. PRELIMINARY CONSIDERATIONS

In addition to the need to consider this case on its
merits, several collateral issues were raised that require
resolution. The first of these relates to the issuance

of a subpoena ad testificandum and a subpoena duces tecum by

the Commission following receipt of an application for
issuance by the Complainant. The Respondent, on the day

of the hearing, filed formal objections to the subpoena

duces tecum while providing some of the documents_soughtJ

The objections were taken under adversement and the hearing

3Briefs were originally due thirty days after receipt
of the transcript. However, as a consequence of several
rulings and additional post hearing requests (see infra
at p. 4) briefs were not submitted until April 21, I98T1.




continued. The parties were also given ten days to brief
this issue. Subsequently, the parties decided not to
pursue this matter. There was therefore, no need to rule
on the objections filed. |

A second issue raised by the Complainant concerned
her inability to gain access to the Commission's case file.
Complainant sought both access to the case file and a
¢ontinuance of the hearing. The first request was granted;
the second denied. The hearing officer did indicate that
the hearing could be reconvened at % subsequent date if
necessary. Subsequent to the hearing, the parties agreed
to supplement the record by introducing documents obtained

from the Commission's files rather than reconvene. Two

documents were submitted by the Complainant which were

labeled as Complainant's exhibits 13 and 14. Respondent
objécted to the admission of these documents as inappro-
priate and not in keeping with the prior agreement to
permit supplementation. The hearing officer did exclude
the document labeled as Complainant's Exhibit 13 while
admitting Complainant's Exhibit 14.

Lastly,‘the Complainant alleged that there was an
inherent due process violation of his client's rights

owing to the fact that both the hearing officer and

counsel representing the Commission's prior determination

were Assistant General Counsel employed by the Commission.




Counsel for the Complainant did admit that he had no
intention of introducing evidence designed to show actual

prejudice (N.T. 15).ZL Accordingly, the hearing continued,

Commonwealth, Human Rel-Com'n v. Thorp, R & A, 361 A.2d
497, 501 (Cmwlth. 1975). ’

III. POSITIONS OF THE PARTIES INVOLVED

A. POSITION OF THE COMMISSION IN BEHALF OF ITS
PRIOR DETERMINATION.

The Commission indicated that its role was limited
to a presentation on the record of the findings previously
made by the Commission and the basis for those findings
(N.T. 15, 16). Duriﬁg the hearing the Commission intro-
duced é number of exhibits Calcuiated to serve this
purpose. These documents.included:

-

(1) the complaint filed by Mrs. Carney (Com. Exh; 1Y,

(2) the 5/28/75 Case Closing Recommendation, including:

analysis, (Com. Exh. 3); -

(3) the 7/7/75 notification of closing sent to the
Complainant (Com. Exh. 2);

(4) the 7/16/75 correspondence requesting recon-

sideration of the decision to close (Com. Exh. 4);

(5) the 10/31/75 letter from Complainant indicating
the submission of additional information
(Com. Exh. 5);

“N.T. - stands for Notes of Testimony and will be
used throughout.
Other abbreviations used include:

a) Com. Exh. - Commission Exhibits
B) R. Exh. - Respondent Exhibit
¢) C. Exh. - Complainant Exhibit




(6) the second case closing recommendation, in-
cluding analysis, dated 5/27/77, (Com. Exh. 6);

(7) the second notification of closing letter,
dated 8/4/77, (Com. Exh. 7).

The Commission was not an active participant at the

hearing nor did it submit a post hearing brief.

B. ©POSITION OF THE COMPLAINANT.

The Complainant takes the position that the Commission
erred in a number of ways. From a factual standpoint
the Complainant alleges that the Commission erred as
follows:

(a) in conﬁluding that the Complainant was a
clerical employee;

(b) 1in comparing the Complainant's position to
: the position held by one Carol Superm;

(e) in flndlng that the Complalnant was replaced
by another female; and

(d) 1in failing to consider the Complalnant Y
allegations of dlscrlmlnatlon in terms of
condition of employment'.

In a more general sense, and from a legal standpoint,

the Complainant argues that the Commission's findings

regarding the reason for termination were against the

weight of the evidence and were erroneous. Further, the
Complainant contends that she has produced substantial

evidence that the Commission erred in its finding.

C. POSITION OF THE RESPONDENT

The Respondent takes the position that the Commission
correctly determined on two separate occasions that no

probable cause existed to credit the allegations of the




com?laint.

(a)
(b)

(e)

(d)

(e)

Factually, the Respondent's arguments include:

the only job comparable to the position held
by the Complainant was also held by a female;

the Complainant earned more than the only other
person in a comparable position;

there were no similarly situated males who
were compensated at a higher rate than the
Complainant;

the Complainant was terminated due to her
inability to take shorthand and because her
attitude had created personality conflicts;
and

the Complainant's duties and responsibilities
were assumed by females.

Apart from the factual arguments, the Respondent

contends that the Complainant's burden at the hearing was

to present new evidence or demonstrate that there was a

serious error in the prior determination.

IV. FINDINGS OF FACT - CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND ANALYSIS

A. FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The Complainant herein is Phyllis A. Carney,
an adult female, who resides at 606 North
Seventh Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.
(N.T. 41).

2. The Respondent herein is the Magee Memorial

Hospital, Philadelphia, Pennsylwvania.
(N.T. 138).

3. The Complainant was employed by the Respondent
in September, 1969, as an Executive Secretary.
(N.T. 41-42).

4. In June, 1970 the Complainant's job title

was changed to Administrative Assistant.
(N.T. 43; R. Exh. 5).

5. On February 2, 1973 the Complainant was
terminated from employment with the Respondent.
(N.T. 54).




On or about February 20, 1973, the Com-
plainant filed a complaint with the Commission
alleging that the Respondent terminated her
because of her sex, female. Complainant

also alleged that while employed she was
compensated at a lower rate than were male
employees holding positions with similar
responsibilities. (Com. Exh. 1).

Commission staff investigated the allegations
in the complaint and on or about May 28, 1975
recommended that the case be closed on the
grounds that no probable cause existed to
credit the allegations. (Com. Exh. 3).

The Commission staff decision was based upon
investigation which resulted in the con-
clusion that there were no male employees
who performed duties comparable to the
Complainant; that the closest analogous
position to the Complainant's was held by a
female (Medical Secretary to the Medical
Director); that the Complainant earmned more
than all other clerical employees; and that
the Complainant was replaced by a female. '
(Com. Exh., 3). '

The Complainant filed a request for recon-
sideration of the decision to close her case
which was granted. On July 29, 1976 a
conference was held to consider the case.

In attendance were counsel for the Commission,
Respondent and Complainant. No sworn testimony .
was taken.

Subsequent to the July 29, 1976 conference,
Commission staff renewed its investigation
of the Complainant's allegations. (Com,
Exh. 6). ' -

Investigation included a review of information,
data and documents provided by both the
Complainant and the Respondent including:
Complainant's Application form, assorted job
descriptions, prior investigative notes,
interviews with Joseph Rainville and Paul
LeBrecht (Respondent employees), correspondence
from Complainant's Counsel, personnel records
of the Complainant and other employees and
various employment applications and resumes.
(Com. Exh. 6).




12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Commission staff, on or about May 27, 1977,
recommended that the case be closed on the
grounds that no probable cause existed to
credit the allegations. (Com. Exh. 6).

The Complainant was notified of the no
probable cause finding on or about August &,

1977. (Com. Exh. 7).

The second Commission staff decision was
based upon evidence uncovered during its
investigation which led to the conclusion
that the Complainant was hired as an
Executive Secretary in September, 1969,

and became an Administrative Assistant in
May, 1970. Investigation also led to
conclusion that the Complainant did not
hold a position comparable to any male
employee and that the only other Adminis-
trative Assistant position was held by another
female who served as a Medical Secretary

to the Medical Director. Investigation
also led to the conclusion that a new
Administrator, Joseph Rainville, replaced
the Complainant with another female because
Rainville indicated a need for a secretary
who could take shorthand; and because of
the Complainant's attitude about her
position. (Com., Exh. 6; N.T. 54, 153).

From approximately June, 1970, until her
termination, the Complainant served as an
Executive Secretary/Administrative
Assistant. (N.T. 43, 47, 84).

There were no male employees who held the
position of executive secretary/adminis-
trative assistant either during or sub-
sequent to the Complainant's employment
with the Respondent. (Com.. Exh. 6).

The position mostly closely analogous to
the Complainant's was that of Medical
Secretary to the Medical Director which
was held by a female. (Com. Exh. 6; N.T.
145, 148). L

The Complainant's wages were substantially
equally to those earned by the Medical
Secretary. (R. Exh. 5 and 6).




19. During the time period subsequent to the
departure of Paul LaBrecht, who had served
as Assistant Administrator and Business
Manager, and prior to the appointment of
Joseph Rainville as Administrator, the
Complainant did not assume the duties of
Assistant Administrator. (N.T. 152;

Com. Exh. 6).

20. TFollowing the termination of the Complainant,
Thomas Martin (Comptroller and later
Assistant Administrator) did not assume |
her position as Executive Secretary/Adminis- [
trative Assistant. Her secretarial duties '
were assumed by another female (Julie
Shavel) and her personnel duties were also
assumed by a female (Patricia Racey).

(N.T. 138, 152; R-3 and R-4; N.T. 56, 102).

21. During the course of the January 30, 1981 ;
hearing the Complainant did not introduce material
evidence that had not previously been i
considered by the Commission Staff.

B. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. The Commission has jurisdiction over the

' Complainant and Respondent and the subject
matter of the Complaint under the Act,
pursuant to Section 9 of the Act, 43 P.S.
959.

2. Investigation by Commission staff failed to
uncover evidence sufficient to support a
finding that there was probable cause to
believe that the Complainant had been dis-

- eriminated against because of her sex,
~ female, either with respect to compensation
or regarding her termination from employment.

3. The Complainant has failed to produce evidence
sufficient to support her allegation that
Commission staff erred in concluding that
no probable cause existed. ‘

4, Probable cause to credit the allegations i

contained in the complaint has not been
established.

10
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IVv. ANALYSIS

The essential issue presented in this case is whether
Commission staff correctly determined that no probable
cause existed to credit the allegations in the complaint.
Probable Cause has been defined as, "An apparent state of
facts found to exist upon reasonable inquiry which would
induce a reasonably intelligent and prudent man to believe...
in a c¢civil case, that a cause of action existed. Blacks

Law Dictionary, Revised Fourth Edition at p. 1365 (1968).

In determining the correctness of a no probable cause
decision, the appropriate legal standard to use is one
which will determine whether the decision is supported by
evidence sufficient to convince a reasonable mind to a

fair degree of certainty, PLRB v. Elks Motor Sales Co., 388

Pa, 173, 130 A.2d 501 (1957). There is no requifement

that the decision Ee free from all doubt. The key is the.
existence of eﬁidehée sufficient to convince the reasonable
person. After reviewing the évidence of record in this
case it is clear that the above standard has been satisfied.
The Commission ﬁegiéion_thatmnp probable-cause_existed was
based upon evidence sufficient to convince a reasonable
person.

It should be noted in this case that two separate
though interrelated investigations into the allegation
found in the complaint did occur. The investigations
included a review of information and documents provided

both by the Complainant and the Respondent. Investigation

11




also included personal interviews with Respondent employees
and the submission of affidavits by several employees.
This investigation resulted in a finding that the evidence
was insufficient to warrant a probable cause finding.
Nothing produced by the Complainant during the course of
the hearing leads to a contrary conclusion. In fact, the
evidence presented at the hearing amounted to little more
than a review of evidence already in the hands of the
Commission at the time the May 27, 1977 no cause recom-
mendation was made. No new and material evidence was
introduced nor was there any evidence that an incorrect
legal standard was applied.

The facts clearly showed that the Complainant was
hired as a secretary in September, 1969. Approximately
ten months later, the Complainant's title was changed to
Administrative Assistant. From that time until her ter-
mination she served in the.capécity of secretary/adminis-
trétive assistant.  The position most'closely comparable
to the Complainant's was that of Medical Secretary/Ad-
miﬁistrative Assistant; VThis position was also.heid by a
female. Certainly, these two jobs Weré not identical.
 However, they were the two positions that combined‘secre-
tarial and administrative functions. Moreover, the
evidence showed that the Complainant's secretarial functioms,
subsequent to her termination, were assumed by a female
while the personnel functions were also assumed by a female.

F

The evidence produced by the Complainant does not support

12




a conclusion that she assumed the position of Assistant
Administrator following the departure of Paul LaBrecht

or that Thomas Martin assumed her position of executive
secretary/administrative assistant. Thus, the Complainant
failed to establish the crucial element of a prima facie
charge of sex discrimination, namely that others not in
the Complainant's class were treated differently. SEE

GENERALLY: McDonnell-Douglas v. Green, 411 U.S. 792 (1973).

It was the lack of evidence to support the charge following
the investigation and conversely the existence of evidence
which rebutted the allegations in the charge that led to
the decision to recommend that the case be closed as no
probable cause. The evidence of record is sufficient to

support that recommendation.

13




COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANTA
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE
PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION
PHYLLIS A. CARNEY,
Complainant
vSs. § DOCKET NO. E-5564

MAGEE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL,
Respondent

RECOMMENDATION OF HEARING OFFICER

ﬁday of /%4(71 , 1981, in

consideration of the entire record in this matter, the

AND NOW, this 2o

Hearing Officer hereby adopts the attached as his proposed
Factual Statement qf the Case, Preliminary ansiderations,
Positions of the Parties Involved, Findings of Fact,
Conclusions of Law, Analysis and Final Order, an&

. recommends that the same be finally adopted and issued by

the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission.

' PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION

BY%//GU/ /é//f—‘/
MichAel Hardiman
Assdstant General Counsel
Pa’ Human Relations Commission

301 Muench Street
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17102
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANTIA
GOVERNOR'S OQFFICE
PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION

PHYLLIS A. CARNEY,

Complainant
vs. ; DOCKET NO. E-5564
MAGEE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL, ;
Respondent
ORDER
AND NOW, to wit, this 2nd day of July , 1981,

upon consideration of the Findings of Fact, Conclusions
of Law, Analysis and Recommendation of the Hearing Officer,
and pursuant to the provisions of Section 9 of the
Pennsylvania Human Relations Act, as amended, the
Pennsylvania'Human Relations Commission hereby

‘ | ORDERS
that the case be closed on the grounds that no probable

cause exists to credit the allegations of the complaint.

PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION -

By o~ TR
Joseph X. Yaffe, Chair
/) o
sl gt ol it

Elizabeth M. Scott, Setretary
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANTA

" GOVERNOR'S OFFICE

- PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSTON

PHYLLIS A. CARNEY, .
d%mplainant

\j s s edaiiees o

vs. . DOCKET NO. E-5564

¢ By oot B S B - : . ‘

MAGEE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL,
Respondent

PROBABLE CAUSE HEARING
ADJUDICATION




I. FACTUAL STATEMENT OF THE CASE

jﬁThe Complalnan; ﬁlJPUPd ghat the. Reﬁponumnr LJ‘fIiP

'{--am}h ®

agalnst her because of her sex, ;emale, by eu»\\13

her at a lower salary rate than male emplovess with

" Complainant that it had determined that no probable cause

its finding, hbr case had been closed The Complainant

On or about February 20, 1973 Phyllis A. Carney
(Complainant) filed a complaint with the Pennsylvania

Human Relations Commission (CommlsSLOn) agalnst the =

Magee Memorial Hospital For Convalcscents (chpondent)

Aol QQ

similar responeddsddsbeiecs and bysterminating o Lwwimfross -

m

positicn as an Administrative Assistant. The qup*ulHuUL

further alleged that the Respondent had failed to post
notices as required by the Pennsylvanla Human Relatlons
Act (Act)? | |

The Commission undertook an investigation of the

complaint and on or about July 7, 1975 informed the

existed to credit the allegations in the complaint. The"

Commission also informed the Complainant that, based upen

: S )
iwmwmmw Ry Ees

was given ten days to request reconsideration of the decision.

lSection 955(j) of the Act requires those subject to
the Act to, "...post and exhibit prominently in his place
of business any fair practices notice prepared and dis-
tributed by the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission"
43 P.S. 955(3) (Supp. 1980-81). This allegation was not
seriously litigated as an issue during the hearing. More-
over, it appears from the record in the case that notices
had been posted by the Respondent (see Commission - :
Exhibit #7). :
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8
The Complainapt.did file a timely request for rgoon~. -

sideration which was granted. On July 29, 1976, a con-
ference was held which was attended by counsel for the .
Commission, Complainant and.Respondent. Subéequent‘to‘i'
thlS conference addltlonal lnvestlwatzon was undprtéken.‘

by the Comm;ssmon‘ On or dbGUL August 4, 1977 the

“Commission notified the Gomplainunt that it nau aggln

closed her case on the grounds that no probable cause
existed to credit the allegations of the complainﬁ.
~Following thé*second no probable cause case closure,
the Complainant filed a petition for review in the nature
of mandamus against the Commission in Commonwealth Court.
This action sought to compell the Commission to reopen

its investigation and to grant her a preliminary hearing

. before three or more Commissioners. The Commission filed

preliminary objections to the petition which were overruled

by the Court on August 9, 1979, Carney v. Com., Pennsyl-

vania H.R. Com'n., 404 A.2d 760 (Cmwlth., 1979). Thereafter,

counsel for the Commission and the Complainant entered

into a stipulated agreement whereby the Commission would

convene a Preliminary Hearing in lieu of further lltlgation
On January 30,~1981, a hearlnggwas_held before:ﬁ7l“

Michael Hérdimam,.Assistant General Coﬁnsel for théf 

2

Commission, Harrisburg Regional Office.

ZIn overruling the preliminary objections, the Court
had specifically indicated that given the nature of the-
hearing the Complainant was seeking there was no requirement
that a Commissioner be present at the hearing, Id. at p, 763.




Claudette Spencer, Assistant Gene?él'cdunsel for thé_ 
CémmissionJFPhiladelphia Regiona1foice, rebreséntediﬁﬁéhi;?'f'
Cémmission bﬁ behalf'bf ité3prio?'détermination.;ljbﬁn% ﬂ ?J T1
\"N.Matruilo;'E3quire, reﬁfesented thé_Complaihantiéﬁd'Dayidﬂfoffffwﬁ

P

T. Duff, Esquire, represented the Respondent. At the.

ORISRy R
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Toloséd of "the hearing all parties were given the oppor="7 "

tunity to submit Post Hearing Briefs.3
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II. PRELIMINARY CONSIDERATIONS

In addition to the need to consider this case on its
merits, several collateral issues were raised that require

resolution. The first of these relates to the issuance

of a subpoena ad testificandum and a subpoena duces tecum by

the Commission following receipt of an application for
issuance by the Complainant. The Respondent, on the day
of the hearing, filed formal objections to the subpoena

duces tecum while providing some of the documents sought.

The objections'gere taken under adversement and the hearing

§

R R sy vied i iiiedenn b g | Cd i D e sy pekeie e - b

3Briefs were originally due thirty days after receipt
of the transcript. However, as a consequence of several
rulings and additional post hearing requests (see infra
at p. 4) briefs were not submitted until April 21, 193I1. -
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continued. The parties were also given ten days to brief
this issue. Subsequently, the parties decided not to

pursue this matter. There was therefore, no need to rule

on the objections filed.

A second issue raised by the Complainant concerned

‘her inability to gain access to the Commission's casé_file.

Complainant sought both access to the case file and a
continuance of the hearing. The first request was granted;
the second denied. The hearing officer did indicate that

the hearlng could be reconvened at a subsequent date if

'ﬁnecessary Subsequent ‘to the hearmng, the partles agreed
to supplement the record by introducing documents obtained

from the Commission's files rather than reconvene. Two.

documents were submitted by the Complainant which were
:labéled as-Complainant's exhibits 13 and 14. Respondent:
ofjéétéd.tb the admission of these documents as inéppréh_‘
priaté'and not in keeping with the prior agreement to -
permit.supplémentation. The hearing officer did excludg"
the document labeled as Complainant's Exhibit 13 while |

admittlng Complalnant s Exhibit 14,

Lastly, the Complalnant alleged that there wésrén”.kwl'ﬁ“
:1nherent due process violation of his client's rlghts__f;if

l‘ owing to the fact that both the hearing officer and
counsel repreéenting the Commission's prior determinétion- 

were Assistant General Counsel employed by the Commissibn;~i 
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‘ Counsel for the Complalnant dld admlt that he had no

intentlon of introduc1ng evidence designed to show actual

) MMAWMW
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prejudlce (N T 15) Accordlngly, the hearlng contlnued

Commonwealth Human Rel Com n_v. Thorp, R & A, 361 A 2d

497, 501 (CmeLth. 1975). LS f_u:'_"af~fﬁcggiq

1. "POSI'T'IONS OF THE 'PARTIES' INVOLVED

- A.  POSITION OF THE COMMISSION IN BEHALF OF ITS
” PRIOR DETERMINATION. ‘ '

The Commission indicated that its role was limited
to a presentation on the.record of the findings previously
made by the Commission and the basis for those findings

(N.T. 15, 1l6) During the hearing the Commission intro-

¢
: ﬁmwmm

e Pt b its - calsn}ﬁfeﬁsto serve*thf@

purpose. These documents included: cff : .

(1) the complaint filed by Mrs. Carney (Com. Exh. 1);

(2) the 5/28/75 Case Closing Recommendation, including
analysis, (Com. Exh. 3); : :

(3) the 7/7/75 notification of closing sent to the
Complainant (Com. Exh, 2);

(4) the 7/16/75 correspondence requesting recon-
sideration of the decision to c¢lose (Com. Exh 4);

(5) the 10/31/75 letter from Complainant indicating
the submission of additional information
(Com. Exh. 5);

“N.T. - stands for Notes of Testimony and will be_
used throughout. o
Other abbreviations used include:

a) Com. Exh. - Commission Exhibits
b) R. Exh. - Respondent Exhibit

¢) C. Exh. - Complainant Exhibit




‘H:(6). thé second case closing recommendation, in- :
©cluding analysis, dated 5/27/77, (Com. Exh. 6);

7*5(7)1'the second notification of closing letter,
dateg 8/4/77, (Com. Exh. 7).

s wiil] P om T POTP TS ot errere tb e et o T putt At The

hearing nor did it submit a post hearing brief.

B. POSITION OF THE COMPLAINANT

Tﬁe Complainant takes the position that the Commiséion
erred in a number of ways. From a factual standpoint
the Complainant alleges that the Commission erred as
follows:

(a) in concluding that the Complainant was a
clerical emplovee;

(b) in comparing the Complainant's position to
the position held by one Carol Supern;

(¢) in finding that the Complainant was replacéd
by another female; and '

(d) in failing to consider the Complainant's
allegations of discrimination’ in terms of
condition of employment'.

- In a more general sense, and from a legal standpoint,
the Complainant argues that the Commission's findings -
regarding the reason for termination were against the
weight of the evidence and were erroneous. Further, the -~

Complainant contends that she has produced'substantialjf”bgtr

evidence that the Commission erred in its finding. '”'f*"

. C. POSITION OF THE RESPONDENT

‘The Respondent takes the position that the Commission

-correctly. .determined on two separate occasions that o awi

probable cause existed to credit the allegations of the-f




complaint,

(a)

Factually, the Respondent's arguments includééﬁrv*

‘the only job comparable to the position held .

by the Complainant was also held by a female;

. SOy

Apart from the factual arguments

the Complainant earned more than the only other ;f;
. person in a comparable position; BT

there were no similarly situated males who

‘were compensated at a higher rate than the
- Complainant;

: ..;::. ‘- (d)

the Complainant,was'terminated due to her _
inability to take shorthand and because her. -

attitude had created personality conflicts; . . .. 7

~;the Complalnant s dutles and: responsrbllltles.

were assumed by females.

the Respondent

;jcontends that the Complalnant s burden at the hearlng was

to present new evrdence or demonstrate that there was a

 serious errdr in the prior determination,

1V,

]

FINDINGS OF FACT - CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND ANALYSiS p

A. .

FINDINGS OF FACT

4? -In June,

5. On February 2,
. terminated from employment with the Respondent.-:

1. The Complainant herein is Phyllis A. Carney,
an adult female, who resides at 606 North
Seventh Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylwvania.
(N.T. 41). _ .

2. The Respondent herein is the Magee Memorial

Hospital, Philadelphia,
138).

Pennsylvania.
(N.T

3. The Complainant was employed by the Respondent
as an Executive Secretary.

in September, 1969,

(N.T. 41-42).

1970 the Complainant's job title
was changed to Administrative Assrstant
(N.T. 43; R. Exh. 5). '
1973 the Complainant was

(N.T. 54).
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On or about February 20, 1973, the Cowm- . ..
plainant filed a cavqpi,s:lmr wiich -Lhe CV~n.ui£Jai<‘» o

“-aLlevlng that  the Res TOMJLHG terminated HLL

11.

gsw!‘n

! Z, Complainant
also alleged that while LmDLUde shie was
compensated at a lower rate than were male
employees holding positions with similar
responsibilities. (Com. Exh. 1).

bacause of her sew, fens

Commission staff investigated the allegations
in the complaint and on or about May 28, 1975
recommended that the case be closed on the
grounds that no probable cause existed to -
credit the allegatlons (Com. Exh. 3)

“The Comm1331on staff decision was based upon

investigation which resulted in the con-
clusion that there were no male employees
who performed duties comparable to the
Complainant; that the closest analogous
position to the Complainant's was held by a
female (Medical Secretary to the Medical
Director); that the Complainant earned more
than all other clerical employees; and that
the Complainant was replaced by a female,
(Com. Exh. 3). .

~The Complainant filed a request for recon-

sideration of the decision to close her case
which was granted. On July 29, 1976 a
conference was held to consider the case.

In attendance were counsel for the Commission,
Respondent and Complainant. No sworn testimony

was taken.

Subsequent to the July 29, 1976 conference;

Commission staff renewed its investigation -
of the Complainant's allegations. (Com.
Exh. 6). L

Investigation included a review of lnformatlon'”
data and documents provided by both the - ..
Complainant and the Respondent including:
Complainant's AppllcaLzon form, assorted Job
descriptions prior investigative notes,
interviews with Joseph Rainville and Paul _
LeBrecht (Respondent employees), correspondence.
from Complainant's Counsel, personncl recordu‘-i
of the Complainant and other employees and . |
various employment applications and resumes
(Com. Exh 6). L
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" and became an Administrative Assistant 1n_
to the Medical Director. Investigation

" also led to the conclusion that a new

- position. (Com. Exh. 6; N.T. 54, 153).

. The Complalnant S wages were substantlally S

Commission staff, on or about May 27, 1977,
recommended that the case be closed on the
grounds that no probable cause existed to
credit the allegations. (Com. Exh. 6).

The Complainant was notified of the no
probable cause finding on or about August &,
1977. . (Com. Exh. 7). ‘

The second Commission staff decision was
based upon evidence uncovered during its
investigation which led to the conclusion.
that the Complainant was hired as an
Executive Secretary in September, 1969,

May, 1970. Investigation also led to
conclusion that the Complainant did not
hold a position comparable to any male :
employee and that the only other Adminis-
trative Assistant position was held by another
female who served as a Medical Secretary.

Administrator, Joseph Rainville, replaced
the Complainant with another female because
Rainville indicated a need for a secretary
who could take shorthand; and because of
the Complainant's attitude about her

From approximately June, 1970, until her

termination, the Complalnant served as an
Executive Secretary/Admlnlstratlve :
Assistant. (N.T. 43, 47, 84).

There were no male employees who held the.
position of executive secretary/adminis- -
trative assistant either during or sub- =
sequent to the Complainant's employment
with the Respondent. (Com. Exh. 6). .-

The position,mostly closely analogous to
the Complainant's was that of Medical.
Secretary to the Medical Director which’

was held by a female (Com. Exh..6; N. Tuﬁm
145, 148) ' =

equally to those earned by the Medical '
Secretary. (R. Exh. 5 and 6).
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B. - CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

- Manager, and prior .to the appointment of.  '

“(N.T. 138, 152; R-3 and R-4; N.T. 56, '1'02)‘.-

During the time period subsequent to the
departure of Paul LaBrecht, who had served:
as Assistant Administrator and Business

‘Joseph Rainville as:Administrator, the
Complainant did not: assume the dutles of
Assistant Admlnlstrator (N.T. 152
-Com. Exh. 6). .

Followlng the termlnatlon of the Complalnant;
Thomas Martin (Comptroller and later
‘Assistant. Administrator) did not assume | :
her pOSltlon as Executive Secrerary/Admlnlsu‘
trative Assistant. Her secretarial duties
were assumed by another female (Julie ‘
Shavel) and her personnel duties were also -
assumed by a female (Patr1c1a Racey) .

During the course of the January 30, 1981
hearing the Complainant did not introduce materia
evidence that had not previously been
considered by the Commission Staff.

1,

- contained in the complaint has not been -

.The Commission has jurisdiction over the \
Complainant and Respondent and the subject
matter of the Complaint under the Act,
pursuant to Section 9 of the Act, 43 P.5
959.

Investigation by Commission staff failed to
uncover evidence sufficient to support a
finding that there was probable cause to -
believe that the Complainant had been dis-
criminated against because of her sex,

female, either with respect to compensation

or regarding her termination from employment.

The Complainant has failed to produce evidence
sufficient to support her allegation that '
Commission staff erred in concluding that

no probable cause existed.

Probable cause to credit the allegations.

establlshed

10
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~IV. ~ ANALYSIS

‘:Commission-staff correctly determined that no probable
~a — . . f 4 '
“cause existed to credit the allegations in the complaint.

'.tProbable'Cause has been definedlas, "An apparent state of

- Law Dictionary, Revised Fourth Edition at p. 1365 (1968).

case it is clear that the above - standard has been satlsfled

-

Vbased upon - ev1dence suff1c1ent to conv1nce a reasonable

.person.

“fthough 1nterrelated investigatlons 1nto the allegatlon
Jffound in the complalnt d1d occur The investlgatlons
‘tflncluded a review of 1nformatlon and documents prov1ded

ltboth by the Complamnant and the Respondent | Investlgat;on_i?;'

“induce a reasonably intelligent and prudent man to believe...,

decision, the appropriate legal standard to use is one

Pa. 173, 130 A.2d 501 (1957)Q.'There is no'requiremént*‘

“existence of ev1dence suff1c1ent to convince the reasonable

-The COmmlSSan dec151on that - no probable cause ex15ted was_{v

The essential issue presented in this case 1s whether

facts found to exist upon reasonable inquiry which would

in a civil case, that a cause of action existed. Blacks

In determiningfthe correctness of a no probable cause

which will determine whether the decision is supported by

evidence sufficient to convince a reasonable mind to a

fair degree'of certainty, PLRB v, Elks Motor Sales Co., 388 -
that the decision be. free from all doubt The key lS the

person After reV1ewing the ev1dence of record in this-°

It should be noted in this eaée-that two separatél:”“

1



..while the. personnel functlons were also assumed by a. female

'e;aleo 1ﬁcluded personaillnﬁerv1ews with Respondent employees.w
'ﬁand the ‘submission of aff1dav1ts by several employees

This investigation resulted in a finding that the eVLdence
was insufficment to warrant a probable cause flndlng

'Nothlng produced by the Complalnant during the course of

the_hearlng leads to a contrary conclusion. In fact, the '

evidence presented at the hearing amounted to little more
than a review of evideﬁce already in the hands of the
Commission at the time the May 27, 1977 no cause recom?
mendation was made. No neﬁ and méﬁerial evidence was
introduced nor was there any evideﬁce that an incofrecte.
:legal standard was dpplied, | |

The facts cleariy showed that the Complainant was
“hired as a secretary in September; 1969. Approximately |
ten months later, the Complainant?s.title was changed to
-Administrative Assistant. From that time until her ter-i_
mination she served in the capac1ty of secretary/admlnls;'
trative assxstant The pOSltlon most closely comparable‘f‘Tff
to the Complalnant s was that of Medlcal Secretery/Ad— L
mlnlstratlve‘ASSLStant. This p031t10n was also held by a‘fff
.:femele. Certalnly, ‘these two jobs were not 1dentlcal
.However, they were the two pOSltlonS:that comblned_secrelﬁc
‘tarial and edministfetive functione.  Moreover, the :
evidence showed that the Complainant S secretarlal funcﬁlone”

» subsequent to her termlnatlon were. assumed by a female 3

ﬂThe_eVLdence produced by.the Complalnant does not sqppo:;; ‘f

12



iéiconélﬁsioﬁthat éheJéSéuméd théﬂﬁééition'of Assistéﬁtl
Administratér following the-departﬁre'of Paul LaBrecht

or that Thomas Martin assumed her position of executive
secretary/admifistrative assistant.‘ Thus, the Complaihant
:féiled to establish‘the&cruCial elémept_of a.primarfacié
charge of sex discrimination, namely Ehét_otheré nét in
the Complainant's class were treaﬁed differently. SEE

GENERALLY: McDonnell-Douglas v. Green, 411 U.S. 792 (1973).

It was the lack of evidence to support the charge following

the investigation and conversely the existence of evidence®

which rebutted the allegations in the charge that led to
 the decision to recommend that the case be closed as no
" probable cause. The evidence of record is sufficient to

support that recommendation.

13




' _PHYLLIS A. CARNEY,

- Positions of the Parties Involved, Findings ofhﬁaét;

. recommnends that the same be finally adopted and issued by

"‘COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA7¢j;§§;T: e
GOVERNOR S OFFICE
PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATTONS COMMISSION

Complalnant
vs. .. DOCKET NO. E-5564

MAGEE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL,
- Respondent

RECOMMENDATION OF HEARING OFFICER

AND NOW, thls.fd‘;aday of //§%61 , 1981, in
consideration of the entire record in this mattef' the
Hearing Officer hereby adopts the attached as his proposed '

Factual Statement of the Case, Preliminary Considerations,
Conclusions 'of Law, Analysis and Final Order, and

the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission.

- PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATTIONS COMMISSION

BY-/;Zéigz:;aécé¢/¢7 /45;/;&L4220wauﬁz/

MichZel Hardiman

Ass stant General Counsel _
Pa’ Human Relations Commission
301 Muench Street _
Harrlsburg, Pennsylvanla 17102_‘
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4 |vv o COMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA

GOVERNOR'S OFFICE

PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATiGNS COMMISSION

PHYLLIS A. CARNEY,

Complainant o |
vs. . DOCKET NO. E-5564
MAGEE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL, - : |
Respondent .
ORDER
" AND NOW, to wit, this 2nd day of July , 1981,

upon consideration of the Findings of Fact, Conclusions .
of Law, Analy:is and Recommendation of the Hearing Officer,
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I. FACTUAL STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On or about Febrﬁary 20, 1973 Phyllis A. Carney
(Complainant) filed a complaint with the Pennsylvania
Human Relations Commission (Commission) against the
Magee Memorial Hospital For Convalescents (Respondent).
The Complainant alleged that the Respondent discriminated
against her because of her séx, female, by compensating
her at a lower salary rate than male employees with
similar responsibilities and by terminating her from her
position as an Administrative Assistant. The Complainant
further alleged that the Respondent had failed to post
notices as required by the Pennsylvania Human Relations
Act (Act)l.

The Commission undertook an investigation of the
complaint andfOn or about July 7, 1975‘informed.tﬁe
Complainant that it had determined that no probable cause
existed to credit the allegations in the complaint. The
Commission also informed the Complainant that, based upon

its finding, her case had been closed. The Complainant

~was given ten days to request reconsideration of the decision,

lgection 955(j) of the Act requires those subject to

~the Act to, "...post and exhibit prominently in his place

of business any fair practices notice prepared and dis-
tributed by the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission''.

-~ 43 P.S. 955(j) (Supp. 1980-81). This allegation was not

seriously litigated as an issue during the hearing. More-
over, it appears from the record in the case that notices
had been posted by the Respondent (see: Commission
Exhibit #7).




The Complainant did file a timely request for recon-
sideration which was granted. On July 29, 1976, a con-
ference was held which was attended by counsel for the
Commission, Complainant and Respondent. Subsequent to
this conference additional investigation was undertaken
by the Commission. On or about August 4, 1977 the
Commission notified the Complainant that it had again
closed her case on the grounds that no probable cause
existed to credit the allegations of the complaint.

Following the second no probable cause case closure,
the Complainant filed a pétition for review in the nature
of mandamus against the Commission in Commonwealth Court.
This action sought to compell the Commission to reopen
its investigation and-to grant her a preliminary hearing
before three or more Commissioners. The Commission filed
preliminary objections to the petition which were overruled

by the Court on August 9, 1979, Carney v. Com., Pennsvl-

vania H.R. Com'n., 404 A.2d 760 (Cmwlth. 1979). Thereafter,

counsel for the Commission and the Complainant entered
into a stipulated agreement whereby the Commission would
convene a Preliminary Hearing in lieu of further litigation.

On January 30, 1981, a hearing was held before

‘Michael Hardiman, Assistant General Counsel for the

Commission, Harrisburg Regional Office.2

2In overruling the preliminary objections, the Court
had specifically indicated that given the mature of the
hearing the Complainant was seeking there was no requirement
that a Commissioner be present at the hearing, Id. at p. 763.




Claudette Spencer, Assistant General Counsel for the
Commission, Philadelphia Regional Office, represented the
Commission on behalf of its prior determination. John
Matrullo, Esquire, represented the Complainant and David
T. Duff, Esquire, represented the Respondent. At the
close of the hearing all parties were given the oppor-

tunity to submit Post Hearing Briefs.3

IT. PRELIMINARY CONSIDERATIONS

In addition to the need to consider this case on its
merits, several collateral issues were raised that require
resolution. The first of these relates to the issuance

of a subpoena ad testificandum and a subpoena duces tecum by

the Commission following receipt of an application for
issuance by the Complainant. The Respondent, on the day
of the hearing, filed formal objections to the subpoena

duces tecum while providing some of the documents sought.

The objections were taken under adversement and the hearing

3Briefs were originally due thirty days after receipt
of the transcript. However, as a consequence of several
rulings and additional post hearing requests (see infra
at p. 4) briefs were not submitted until April 21, 1981,




continued. The parties were also given ten days to brief
this issue. Subsequently, the parties decided not to
pursue this matter. There was therefore, no need to rule
on the objections filed. |

A second issue raised by the Complainant concerned
her inability to gain access to the Commission's case file.
Complainant sought both access to the case file and a
continuance of the hearing. The first request was granted;
the second denied. The hearing officer did indicate that
the hearing could be reconvened at a subsequent date if
necessary. Subsequent to the hearing, the parties agreed
to supplement the record by introducing documents obtained
from the Commission's files father than reconvene. Two
documents were submitted by the Complainant which were

labeled as Complainant's exhibits 13 and 14. Respondent

-objected to the admission of these documents as inappro-

priate and not in keeping with the prior agreement to

permit supplementation. The hearing officer did exclude

the document labeled as Complainant's Exhibit 13 while

admitting Complainant's Exhibit 14,

Lastly, the Complainant alleged that there was an
inherent due process violation of his client's rights
owing to the fact that both the hearing officer and
counsel representing the Commission's prior determination

were Assistant General Counsel employed by the Commission.




Counsel for the Complainant did admit that he had no
intention of introducing evidence designed to show actual
prejudice (N.T. 15).4 Accordingly, the hearing continued,

Commonwealth, Human Rel-Com'n v. Thorp, R & A, 361 A.2d

497, 501 (Cmwlth. 1975).

III. POSITIONS OF THE PARTIES INVOLVED

A, POSITION OF THE COMMISSION IN BEHALF OF ITS
PRIOR DETERMINATION.

The Commission indicated that its role was limited
to a presentation on the record of the findings previously
made by the Commission and the basis for those findings
(N.T. 15, 16). During the hearing the Commission intro-
duced a number of exhibits calculated to serve this
purpose. These documents ingcluded:

(1) the complaint filed by Mrs. Carney (Com. Exh. 1);

(2) the 5/28/75 Case Closing Recommendation, including
analysis, (Com. Exh. 3);

(3) the 7/7/75 notification of closing sent to the
Complainant (Com. Exh. 2);

(4) the 7/16/75 correspondence requesting recon-
sideration of the decision to close {(Com. Exh. 4);

(5) the 10/31/75 letter from Complainant indicating
the submission of additional information
(Com. Exh. 5);

4N.'I‘. - stands for Notes of Testimony and will be
used throughout.
Other abbreviations used include:

a) Com. Exh. - Commission Exhibits
b) R. Exh. - Respondent Exhibit
¢) C. Exh. - Complainant Exhibit




(6) the second case closing recommendation, in-
cluding analysis, dated 5/27/77, (Com. Exh. 6);

(7) the second notification of closing letter,
dated 8/4/77, (Com. Exh. 7).

The Commission was not an active participant at the

hearing nor did it submit a post hearing brief,

B. POSITION OF THE COMPLAINANT

The Complainant takes the position that the Commission
erred in a number of ways. From a factual standpoint
the Complainant alleges that the Commission erred as
follows:

(a) 1in concluding that the Complainant was a
clerical employee;

(b) in comparing the Complainant's position to
the position held by one Carol Supern;

(¢) in flndlng that the Complalnant was replaced
by another female; and

(d) in failing to consider the Complainant’s
allegations of discrimination" in terms of
condition of employment"

In a more general sense, and from a legal standpoint,
the Complainant argues that the Commission's findings
regarding the reason for termination were against the
weight of the evidence and were erroneous. Further, the

Complainant contends that she has produced substantial

evidence that the Commission erred in its finding.

C. POSITION OF THE RESPONDENT

The Respondent takes the position that the Commission
correctly determined on two separate occasions that no

probable cause existed to credit the allegations of the




complaint.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Apart
contends t
to present

serious er

IV. FINDINGS OF FACT - CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND ANALYSIS

Factually, the Respondent's arguments include:

the only job comparable to the position held
by the Complainant was alsoc held by a female;

the Complainant earned more than the only other
person in a comparable position;

there were no similarly situated males who
were compensated at a higher rate than the
Complainant;

the Complainant was terminated due to her
inability to take shorthand and because her
attitude had created persconality conflicts;
and

the Complainant's duties and responsibilities
were assumed by females.

from the factual arguments, the Respondent
hat the Complainant's burden at the hearing was
new evidence or demonstrate that there was a

ror in the prior determination.

A, FINDINGS OF FACT

1. The Complainant herein is Phyllis A. Carney,
an adult female, who resides at 606 North
Séventh Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. |
(N.T. 41). }

2. The Respondent herein is the Magee Memorial
Hospital, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.
(N.T. 138).

3. The Complainant was employed by the Respondent
in September, 1969, as an Executive Secretary.
(N.T. 41-42).

4. In June, 1970 the Complainant's job title ;
was changed to Administrative Assistant. 5
(N.T. 43; R. Exh. 5).

5. On February 2, 1973 the Complainant was
terminated from empleyment with the Respondent.
(N.T. 54).



10.

11.

On or about February 20, 1973, the Com-
plainant filed a complaint with the Commission
alleging that the Respondent terminated her
because of her sex, female. Complainant

also alleged that while employed she was
compensated at a lower rate than were male
employees holding positions with similar
responsibilities. (Com. Exh. 1).

Commission staff investigated the allegations
in the complaint and on or about May 28, 1975
recommended that the case be closed on the
grounds that no probable cause existed to
credit the allegations. (Com. Exh. 3).

The Commission staff decision was based upon
investigation which resulted in the con-
clusion that there were no male employees
who performed duties comparable to the
Complainant; that the closest analogous
position to the Complainant's was held by a
female (Medical Secretary to the Medical
Director); that the Complainant earned more
than all other clerical employees; and that
the Complainant was replaced by a female.
(Com. Exh. 3).

The Complainant filed a request for recon-
sideration of the decision to close her case
which was granted. On July 29, 1976 a
conference was held to consider the case.

In attendance were counsel for the Commission,
Respondent and Complainant. No sworn testimony
was taken.

Subsequent to the July 29, 1976 conference,
Commission staff renewed its investigation
of the Complainant's allegations. (Com.
Exh. 6).

Investigation included a review of information,
data and documents provided by both the
Complainant and the Respondent including:
Complainant's Application form, assorted job
descriptions, prior investigative notes,
interviews with Joseph Rainville and Paul
LeBrecht (Respondent employees), correspondence
from Complainant's Counsel, personnel records
of the Complainant and other employees and
various employment applications and resumes.
(Com. Exh. 6).




12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Commission staff, on or about May 27, 1977,
recommended that the case be closed on the
grounds that no probable cause existed to
credit the allegations. (Com. Exh. 6).

The Complainant was notified of the no
probable cause finding on or about August &,
1977. (Com. Exh. 7).

The second Commission staff decision was
based upon evidence uncovered during its
investigation which led to the conclusion
that the Complainant was hired as an
Executive Secretary in September, 1969,

and became an Administrative Assistant in
May, 1970. Investigation also led to
conclusion that the Complainant did not
hold a position comparable to any male
employee and that the only other Adminis-
trative Assistant position was held by another
female who served as a Medical Secretary

to the Medical Director. Investigation
also led to the conclusion that a new
Administrator, Joseph Rainville, replaced
the Complainant with another female because
Rainville indicated a need for a secretary
who could take shorthand; and because of
the Complainant's attitude about her
position. (Com. Exh. 6; N.T. 54, 153).

From approximately June, 1970, until her
termination, the Complainant served as an
Executive Secretary/Administrative
Agssistant. (N.T. 43, 47, 84).

There were no male employees who held the
position of executive secretary/adminis-
trative assistant either during or sub-
sequent to the Complainant's employment
with the Respondent. (Com. Exh. 6).

The position mostly closely analogous to
the Complainant's was that of Medical
Secretary to the Medical Director which
was held by a female. (Com. Exh. 6; N.T.
145, 148). -

The Complainant’s wages were substantially
equally to those earned by the Medical
Secretary. (R. Exh. 5 and 6).




19.

20.

21.

During the time period subsequent to the
departure of Paul LaBrecht, who had served
as Assistant Administrator and Business
Manager, and prior to the appointment of
Joseph Rainville as Administrator, the
Complainant did not assume the duties of
Assistant Administrator. (N.T. 152;

Com. Exh. 6).

Following the termination of the Complainant,
Thomas Martin (Comptroller and later
Assistant Administrator) did not assume

her position as Executive Secretary/Adminis-
trative Assistant. Her secretarial duties -
were assumed by another female (Julie

Shavel) and her personnel duties were also
assumed by a female (Patricia Racey).

(N.T. 138, 152; R-3 and R-4; N.T. 56, 102).

During the course of the January 30, 1981

hearing the Complainant did not introducematerial

evidence that had not previously been
considered by the Commission Staff.

B. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1.

The Commission has jurisdiction over 'the
Complainant and Respondent and the subject
matter of the Complaint under the Act,
pursuant to Section 9 of the Act, 43 P.S.
959.

Investigation by Commission staff failed to
uncover evidence sufficient to support a
finding that there was probable cause to
believe that the Complainant had been dis-
criminated against because of her sex,
female, either with respect to compensation
or regarding her termination from employment.

The Complainant has failed to produce evidence
sufficient to support her allegation that
Commission staff erred in concluding that

no probable cause existed. '

Probable cause to credit the allegations

contained in the complaint has not been
established.

10




Iv. ANALYSIS

The essential issue presented in this case is whether
Commission staff correctly determined that no probable
cause existed to credit the allegations in the complaint.
Probable Cause has been defined as, "An apparent state of
facts found to exist upon reasonable inquiry which would
induce a reasonably intelligent and prudent man to believe...
in a civil case, that a cause of action existed. Blacks

Law Dictionary, Revised Fourth Edition at p. 1365 (1968).

In determining the correctness of a no probable cause
decision, the appropriate legal standard to use is one
which will determine whether the decision is supported by

evidence sufficient to convince a reasonable mind to a

fair degree of certainty, PLRB v. Elks Motor Sales Co., 388
Pa. 173, 130 A.2d 501 (1957). There is no requirement |
that the decision be free from all doubt. The key is the
existence of evidence sufficient to convince the reasonable
- person. After reviewing the evidence of record in this
case it is clear that the above standard has been satisfied.
The Commission decision that no probable cause existed was
based upon evidence sufficient to convince a reasonable
person.

It should be noted in this case that two separate
though interrelated investigations into the allegation
found in the complaint did occur. The investigations
included a review of information and documents provided

both by the Complainant and the Respondent. Investigation

11




also included personal interviews with Respondent emplovees
and the submission of affidavits by several employees.
This investigation resulted in a finding that the evidence
was insufficient to warrant a probable cause finding.
Nothing produced by the Complainant during the course of
the hearing leads to a contrary conclusion. In fact, the
evidence presented at the hearing amounted to little more
than a review of evidence already in the hands of the
Commission at the time the May 27, 1977 no cause recom-
mendation was made. No new and material evidence was
introduced nor was there any evidence that an incorrect
legal standard was applied.

The facts clearly showed that the Complainant was
hired as a secretary in September, 1969. Approximately
ten months later, the Cdmplainant’s title was changed to
Administrative Assistant. From that time until her ter-
miﬁation she served in the capacity of secretary/adminis-
trative assistant. - The position most tlosely comparable
to the Complainant's was that of Medical Secretary/Ad-
~ministrative Assistant. This position was also held by a
female. Certainly, these two jobs were not identical.
However, they were the two positions that combined secre-

tarial and administrative functions. Moreover, the

evidence showed that the Complainant's secretarial functions,

subsequent to her termination, were assumed by a female
while the personnel functions were also assumed by a female.

The evidence produced by the Complainant does not support

12




a conclusion that she assumed the position of Assistant
Administrator following the departure of Paul LaBrecht

or that Thomas Martin assumed her positiQn of executive
secretary/administrative assistant. Thus, the Complainant
failed to establish the crucial element of a prima facie
charge of sex discrimination, namely that others not in
the Complainant's class were treated differently. SEE

GENERALLY: McDonnell-Douglas v. Green, 411 U.S. 792 (1973).

It was the lack of evidence to support the charge following
the investigation and conversely the existence of evidence
which rebutted the allegations in the charge that led to
the decision to recommend that the case be closed as no
probable cause. The evidence of record is sufficient to

support that recommendation.

13




COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE
PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION
PHYLLIS A. CARNEY,
Complainant
vs. ; DOCKET NO. E-556&4

MAGEE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL,
Respondent

RECOMMENDATION OF HEARING OFFICER

AND NOW, this s Z/Z/day of /%7(71 , 1981, in
congideration of the entire record in this matter, the
Hearing Officer hereby adopts the attached as his proposed
Factual Statement of the Case, Preliminary Considerations,
Positions of the Parties-Involved, Findings of Fact,
Conclusions of Law, Analysis and Final Order, and
recommends that the same be finally adopted and issued by

the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission.

PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION

BY %%;//A/ /é/ /z&///wzm/

Mich#&el Hardiman

Assdstant General Counsel

Pa’ Human Relations Commission
301 Muench Street

Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17102
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
CGOVERNOR'S OFFICE
PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION

PHYLLIS A. CARNEY,

Complainant
Vs, ; DOCKET NO. E-5564
MAGEE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL, :
Respondent
ORDER
AND NOW, to wit, this 2nd day of July , 1981,

upon consideration of the Findings of Fact, Conclusions
of Law, Analysis and Recommendation of the Hearing Officer,
and pursuant to the provisions of Section 9 of the’
Pennsylvania Human Relations Act, as amended, the
Pennsyivénia Human Relations Commission hereby

ORDERS
that the case be closed on the grounds that mo probable

cause exists to credit the allegations of the complaint.

PENNSYLVANTA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION
/ = - Fo s B
"-\___—"P;I'\“t:!(. "f(i " Lx"”j»{[")\d
Joseph X! Yaffeﬁ.chaifgm

is ¥

v

BY

ATTEST:

BY”) LA e s

Elizabeth M. Scott, Setrefary
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I. FACTUAL STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On or about February 20, 1973 Phyllis A. Carmney
(Complainant) filed a complaint with the Pennsylvania
Human Relations Commission (Commission) against the
' Magee Memorial Hospital For Convalescents (Respondent).
The Complainant alleged that the Respondent discriminated
against her because of her séx, female, by compensating
her at a lower salary rate than male employees with
similar responsibilities and by terminating her from her
position as an Administrative Assistant. The Complainant
further alleged that the Respondent had failed to post
notices as required by the Pennsylvania Human Relations
act (Act)l.

The Commission undertook an investigation of the
complaint and on or about July 7, 1975 informed the
Complainant that it had determined that no probable cause
existed to credit the allegations in the complaint. The
Commission also informed the Complainant that, based upen
its finding, her case had been closed. The Complainant

was given ten days to request reconsideration of the decision.

lsection 955(j) of the Act requires those subject to
the Act to, '"...post and exhibit prominently in his place
of business any fair practices notice prepared and dis-
tributed by the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission'.
43 P.S. 955(j) (Supp. 1980-8l). This allegation was not
seriously litigated as an issue during the hearing. More-
over, it appears from the record in the case that notices
had been posted by the Respondent (see: Commission
Exhibit #7).




The Complainant did file a timely request for recon-
sideration which was granted. On July 29, 1976, a con-
ference was held which was attended by counsel for the
Commission, Complainant and Respondent. Subsequent to
this conference additional investigation was undertaken
by the Commission. On or about August 4, 1977 the
Commission notified the Complainant that it had again
closed her case on the grounds that no probable cause
existed to credit the allegations of the complaint.

Following the‘second no probable cause case closure,
the Complainant filed a petition for review in the nature
of mandamus against the Commission in Commonwealth Court.
This action sought to compell the Commission to reopen
its investigation and to grant her a preliminary hearing
before three or more Commissioners. The Commission filed
preliminary objections to the petition which were overruled

by the Court on August 9, 1979, Carney v. Com., Pennsvl-

vania H.R. Com'n., 404 A.2d 760 (Cmwlth. 1979). Thereafter,

counsel for the Commission and the Complainant entered

into a stipulated agreement whereby the Commission would

convene a Preliminary Hearing in lieu of further litigation.
On January 30, 1981, a hearing was held before

Michael Hardiman, Assistant General Counsel for the

Commission, Harrisburg Regional Office.2

21n overruling the preliminary objections, the Court
had specifically indicated that given the nature of the
hearing the Complainant was seeking there was no requirement
that a Commissioner be present at the hearing, Id. at p. 763.




Claudette Spencer, Assistant General Counsel for the
Commission, Philadelphia Regional Office, represented the
Commission on behalf of its prior determination. John
Matrullo, Esquire, represented the Complainant and David
T. Duff, Esquire, represented Ehe Respondent. At the
close of the hearing all parties were given the oppor-

tunity to submit Post Hearing Briefs.3

II. PRELIMINARY CONSIDERATIONS

In addition to the need to consider this case on its
merits, several collateral issues were raised that require
resolution. The first of these relates to the issuance

of a subpoena ad testificandum and a subpoena duces tecum by

the Commission following receipt of an application for
issuance by the Complainant. The Respondent, on the day
of the hearing, filed formal objections to the subpoena.

duces tecum while providing some of the documents sought.

The objections were taken under adversement and the hearing

3Briefs were originally due thirty days after receipt
of the transcript. However, as a consequence of several
rulings and additional post hearing requests (see infra
at p. 4) briefs were not submitted until April 21, I98I.




continued. The parties were also given ten days to brief
this issue. Subsequently, the parties decided not to
pursue this matter. There was therefore, no need to rule
on the objections filed. |

A second issue raised by the Complainant concerned
her inability to gain access to the Commission's case file.
Complainant sought both access to the cése file and a
continuance of the hearing. The first request was granted;
the second denied. The hearing officer did indicate that
the hearing could be reconvened at a subsequent date if
necessary. Subsequent to the hearing, the parties agreed
to supplement the record by introducing documents obtained
from the Commission's files rather than reconvene. Two
documents were submitted by the Complainant which were
labeled as Complainant's exhibits 13 and 14. Respondent
objected to the admission of these documents as inappro-
priate and not in keeping with the prior agreement to
permit supplementation. The hearing officer did exclude
the document labeled as Complainant's Exhibit 13 while
admitting Complainant's Exhibit 14.

Lastly, the Complainant alleged that there was an
inherent due process violationm of his client's rights
owing to the fact that both the hearing officer and
counsel representing the Commission's prior determination

were Assistant General Counsel employed by the Commission.




Counsel for the Complainant did admit that he had no
intention of introducing evidence designed to show actual
prejudice (N.T. 15).4 Accordingly, the hearing continued,

Commonwealth, Human Rel-Com'n v. Thorp, R & A, 361 A.2d

497, 501 (Cmwlth. 1975).

III. POSITIONS OF THE PARTIES INVOLVED

A. POSITION OF THE COMMISSION IN BEHALF OF ITS
PRIOR DETERMINATION,

The Commission indicated that its role was limited
to a presentation on the record of the findings previously
made by the Commission and the basis for those findings
(N.T. 15, 16). During the hearing the Commission intro-
duced a number of exhibits calculated to serve this
purpose. These documents included:

(1) the complaint filed by Mrs. Carney (Com. Exh. 1);

(2) the 5/28/75 Case Closing Recommendation, including
analysis, (Com. Exh. 3);

(3) the 7/7/75 notification of closing sent to the
Complainant (Com. Exh. 2);

(4 the 7/16/75 correspondence requesting recon-
sideration of the decision to close (Com. Exh. &);

(5) the 10/31/75 letter from Complainant indicating
the submission of additional information
(Com. Exh. 5);

4N.T. - stands for Notes of Testimony and will be
used throughout.
Other abbreviations used include:

a) Com. Exh. - Commission Exhibits
b)Y R. Exh. - Respondent Exhibit
¢) C. Exh. - Complainant Exhibit




(6) the second case closing recommendation, in-
cluding analysis, dated 5/27/77, (Com. Exh. 6);

(7) the second notification of closing letter,
dated 8/4/77, (Com. Exh. 7).

The Commission was not an active participant at the

hearing nor did it submit a post hearing brief.

3. POSITION OF THE COMPLAINANT

The Complainant takes the position that the Commission
erred in a number of ways. From a factual standpoint
the Complainant alleges that the Commission erred as
follows:

(a) 1in concluding that the Complainant was a
clerical employee;

(b) 1in comparing the Complainant's position to
the position held by one Carol Supern;

(¢} 1in finding that the Complainant was replaced
by another female; and

(d) in failing to consider the Complainant's
allegations of discrimination' in terms of
condition of employment'.

In a more general sense, and from a legal standpoint,
the Complainant argues that the Commission's findings
regarding the reason for termination were against the
weight of the evidence and were erroneous. Further, the

Complainant contends that she has produced substantial

evidence that the Commission erred in its finding.

C. POSITION OF THE RESPONDENT

The Respondent takes the position that the Commission
correctly determined on two separate occasions that no

probable cause existed to credit the allegations of the




complaint. Factually, the Respondent's arguments include:

(a) the only job comparable to the position held
by the Complainant was also held by a female;

(b) the Complainant earned more than the only other
person in a comparable position;

(¢) there were no similarly situated males who
were compensated at a higher rate than the
Complainant;

(d) the Complainant was terminated due to her
inability to take shorthand and because her
attitude had created personality conflicts;
and

(e) the Complainant's duties and responsibilities
were assumed by females,

Apart from the factual arguments, the Respondent
contends that the Complainant's burden at the hearing was
to present new evidence or demonstrate that there was a

serious error in the prior determination.

IvV. FINDINGS OF FACT - CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND ANALYSIS

A. FINDINGS OF FACT

L. The Complainant herein is Phyllis A. Carney,
an adult female, who resides at 606 North
Seventh Street, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.
(N.T. 41).

2. The Respondent herein is the Magee Memorial
Hospital, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.
(N.T. 138).

3. The Complainant was employed by the Respondent
in September, 1969, as an Executive Secretary.
(N.T. 41-42).

4. 1In June, 1970 the Complainant's job title
was changed to Administrative Assistant.
(N.T. 43; R. Exh. 5).

5. On February 2, 1973 the Complainant was
terminated from employment with the Respondent.
(N.T. 54).




10.

11.

On or about February 20, 1973, the Com-
plainant filed a complaint with the Commission
alleging that the Respondent terminated her
because of her sex, female. Complainant

also alleged that while employed she was
compensated at a lower rate than were male
emplovees holding positions with similar
responsibilities. (Com. Exh. 1).

Commission staff investigated the allegations
in the complaint and on or about May 28, 1975
recommended that the case be closed on the
grounds that no probable cause existed to
credit the allegations. (Com. Exh. 3).

The Commission staff decision was based upon
investigation which resulted in the con-
clusion that there were no male employees
who performed duties comparable to the
Complainant; that the closest analogous
position to the Complainant's was held by a
female (Medical Secretary to the Medical
Director); that the Complainant earned more
than all other clerical employees; and that
the Complainant was replaced by a female.
(Com. Exh. 3).

The Complainant filed a request for recon-
sideration of the decision to close her case
which was granted. On July 29, 1976 a
conference was held to consider the case.

In attendance were counsel for the Commission,
Respondent and Complainant. No sworn testimony
was taken.

Subsequent to the July 29, 1976 conference,
Commission staff renewed its investigation
of the Complainant's allegations. (Com.
Exh. 6).

Investigation included a review of information,
data and documents provided by both the
Complainant and the Respondent including:
Complainant's Application form, assorted job
descriptions, prior investigative notes,
interviews with Joseph Rainville and Paul
LeBrecht (Respondent employees), correspondence
from Complainant's Counsel, personnel records
of the Complainant and other employees and
various employment applications and resumes.
{(Com. Exh. 6).




12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

17.

18,

Commission staff, on or about May 27, 1977,
recommended that the case be closed on the
grounds that no probable cause existed to
credit the allegations. (Com. Exh. 6).

The Complainant was notified of the no
probable cause finding on or about August 4,

1977. (Com. Exh. 7).

The second Commission staff decision was
based upon evidence uncovered during its
investigation which led to the conclusion
that the Complainant was hired as an
Executive Secretary in September, 1969,

and became an Administrative Assistant in
May, 1970. Investigation also led to
conclusion that the Complainant did not
hold a position comparable to any male
employee and that the only other Adminis-
trative Assistant position was held by another
female who served as a Medical Secretary

to the Medical Director. Investigation
also led to the conclusion that a new
Administrator, Joseph Rainville, replaced
the Complainant with another female because
Rainville indicated a need for a secretary
who could take shorthand; and because of
the Complainant's attitude about her

position. -(Com. Exh. 6; N.T. 54, 153).

- From approximately June, 1970, until her

termination, the Complainant served as an
Executive Secretary/Administrative
Assistant. (N.T. 43, 47, 84).

There were no male employees who held the
position of executive secretary/adminis-
trative assistant either during or sub-
sequent to the Complainant's employment
with the Respondent. (Com. Exh. 6).

The position mostly closely analogous to
the Complainant's was that of Medical.
Secretary to the Medical Director which
was held by a female. (Com. Exh. 6; N.T.
145, 148). :

The Complainant's wages were substantially
equally to those earned by the Medical
Secretary. (R. Exh. 5 and 6).




19.

20.

21.

During the time period subsequent to the
departure of Paul LaBrecht, who had served
as Assistant Administrator and Business
Manager, and prior to the appointment of
Joseph Rainville as Administrator, the
Complainant did not assume the duties of
Assistant Administrator. (N.T. 152;

Com. Exh. 6).

Following the termination of the Complainant,
Thomas Martin (Comptroller and later
Assistant Administrator) did not assume

her position as Executive Secretary/Adminis-
trative Assistant. Her secretarial duties
were assumed by another female (Julie

Shavel) and her personnel duties were also
assumed by a female (Patricia Racey).

(N.T. 138, 152; R-3 and R-4; N.T. 56, 102).

During the course of the January 30, 1981 ,
hearing the Complainant did not introduce material
evidence that had not previously been
considered by the Commission Staff.

B. CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1.

.The Commission has jurisdiction over the

Complainant and Respondent and the subject
matter of the Complaint under the Act,
pursuant to Section 9 of the Act, 43 P.S.
959.

Investigation by Commission staff failed to
uncover evidence sufficient to support a
finding that there was probable cause to
believe that the Complainant had been dis-
criminated against because of her sex,
female, either with respect to compensation
or regarding her termination from employment.

The Complainant has failed to produce evidence
sufficient to support her allegation that
Commission staff erred in concluding that

no probable cause existed.

Probable cause to credit the allegations

contained in the complaint has not been
established.

10




IV, ANALYSIS

The essential issue presented in this case is whether
Commission staff correctly determined that no probable
cause existed to credit the allegations in the complaint.
Probable Cause has been defined as, "An apparent stéte of
facts found to exist upon reasonable inquiry which would
induce a reasonably intelligent and prudent man to believe...,
in a civil case, that a cause of action existed. Blacks

Law Dictionary, Revised Fourth Edition at p. 1365 (1968).

In determining the correctness of a no probable cause
decisioﬁ, the appropriate legal standard to use is one
which will determine whether the decision is supported by
evidence sufficlent to convince a reasonable miﬁd to a

falr degree of certainty, PLRB v. Elks Motor Sales Co., 388

Pa. 173, 130 A.2d 501 (1957). There is no requirement

that the decision be free from all doubt. The key is the
existence of evidence sufficient to convince the reasonable
person. After reviewing the evidence of record in this

case it is clear that the above standard has been satisfied.

. The Commission decision that no probable cause existed was

based upon evidence sufficient to convince a reasonable
person.

It should be noted in this case that two separate
though interrelated investigations into the allegation
found in the complaint did occur. The investigations
included a review of information and documents provided

both by the Complainant and the Respondent. Investigation

11




also included personal interviews with Respondent emplovees
and the submission of affidavits by several employees.
This investigation resulted in a finding that the evidence
was insufficient to warrant a probable cause finding.
Nothing produced by the Complainant during the course of
the hearing leads to a contrary conclusion. In fact, the
evidence presented at the hearing amounted to little more
than a review of evidence already in the hands of the
Commission at the time the May 27, 1977 no cause recom-
mendation was made. No new and material evidence was
introduced nor was there any evidence that an incorrect
legal standard was applied.

The facts clearly showed that the Complainant was
hired as a secretary in September, 1969. Approximately
ten months later, the Complainant’s‘title was changed to
Administrative Assistant. From that time until her ter-
mination she served in the capacity of secretary/adminis-
trative assistant.  The position most closely comparable
to the Complainant's was that of Medical Secretary/Ad-
ministrative Assistant. This position was also held by a
female. Certainly, these two jobs were not identical.
However, they were the two positioné that combined secre-
tarial and administrative functions. Moreover, the
evidence showed that the Complainant's secretarial functions,
subsequent to her termination, were assumed by a female
while the personnel functions were also assumed by a female.

The evidence produced by the Complainant does not support

12




a conélusion that she assumed the position of Assistant
Administrator following the departure of Paul LaBrecht

or that Thomas Martin assumed her positipn of executive
secretary/administrative assistant. Thus, the Complainant
failed to establish the crucial element of a prima facie
charge of sex discrimination, namely that others not in

the Complainant's class were treated differently. SEE

GENERALLY: McDonnell-Douglas v. Green, 411 U.S., 792 (1973).

It was the lack of evidence to support the charge following
the investigation and conversely the existence of evidence
which rebutted the allegations in the charge that led to
the decision to recommend that the case be closed as no
probable cause. The evidence of record is sufficient to

support that recommendation.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE
PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION

PHYLLIS A. CARNEY,
Complainant

vs. . DOCKET NO. E-5564

MAGEE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL,
Respondent

RECOMMENDATION OF HEARING OFFICER

AND NOW, this Zs //}day of %5’(71_ , 1981, in
consideration of the entire record in this matter, the
Hearing Officer hereby adopts the attached as his proposed
Factual Statement of the Case, Preliminary Considerationms,
Positions of the Parties Involved, Findings of Fact,
Conclusions of Law, Analysis and Final Order, énd
recommends that the same be finally adopted and issued by

the Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission.

PENNSYLVANIA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION

we 2, S e
Mlc hAel Hardimdn
AssdAstant General Counsel

Human Relations Commission

30i Muench Street
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17102
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COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE
PENNSYLVANTA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION

PHYLLIS A. CARNEY,

Complainant
vS. ; DOCKET NO. E-5564
MAGEE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL, :
Respondent
ORDER
AND NOW, to wit, this 2nd day of July , 1981,

upon consideration of the Findings of Fact, Conclusions

of Law, Analysis and Recommendation of'the Hearing Officer,
and pursuant to the provisions of Section 9 of the
Pennsylvania Human Relatiéns Act, as amended, the
Pennsylvania Human Relations Commission hereby

ORDERS

that the case be closed on the grounds that no probable

cause exists to credit the allegations of the complaint. !

PENNSYLVANTA HUMAN RELATIONS COMMISSION
/ {

: . d’:.“,‘j_" ,'/
gy m— L R
Joseph X. Yaffe, Chair

¥

. i

ATTEST: |
- f IL : "'J /) woofo ‘

BY”’j)(,r’;/ /, I-/I}/: /j// ya 1( J 4 +/

Elizabeth M. Scott, Setretary




